
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

---------------------------------------------------------- X 

BAREND COHEN individually and on ) 
) C. A. No.: [J.S.D.C. a; ,, y behalf of all others similarly situated, 
1  CASHIER^ 

Plaintiff, ) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR 
) VIOLATIONS OF FEDERAL 

- v. - ) SECURITIES LAWS 
) 

ESCALA GROUP INC., JOSE M. 
i 
) 

HERRERO, ESTEBAN PEREZ, GREG ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
MANNING, AND LARRY CRAWFORD ) 

) 
Defendants. j 

........................................................ X 

Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, by his 

undersigned attorneys, for his complaint, alleges upon personal knowledge as to himself and his 

own acts, and upon information and belief as to all other matters, based upon, inter alia, the 

investigation made by and through his attorneys, which investigation included, among other 

things, a review of the public documents, Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") filings, 

analyst reports, news releases and media reports of Escala Group Inc. ("Escala" or the 

"Company"), as follows: 

JURISDICTION AND VEKUE 

1. The claims alleged herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20 of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. $ 5  78j(b) and 78t, and Rule lob-5, 17 

C.F.R. $ 240.10b-5 promulgated thereunder. 

2. The jurisdiction of this Court is based on Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 

U.S.C. $78aa and 28 U.S.C. $1331 (federal question jurisdiction). 
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3. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange 

Act. Many of the acts and transactions giving rise to the violations of law complained of herein, 

including the preparation and dissemination to the investing public of materially false and 

misleading information, occurred in this judicial district. 

4. In connection with the acts, transactions and conduct alleged herein, defendants used 

the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the United States mails, interstate 

telephone communications and the facilities of a national securities exchange and market. 

THE PARTIES 

5 .  Plaintiff purchased shares of Escala common stock during the Class Period, as set 

forth in the accompanying Certification, and has been damaged as a result of defendants' 

conduct as alleged herein. 

6. Escala Group, Inc. operates as a global collectibles merchant and auction house 

network with operations in North America, Europe, and Asia, as well as on the Internet. The 

company, through its subsidiaries, specializes in auctions, merchantldealer operations, and 

trading. In North America, the company engages in Internet, interactive telephone, and Internet 

and live simulcast-auctioning and merchandisingldealing of collectibles, such as rare stamps, 

stamp collections and stocks, coins, sports trading cards and memorabilia, and fine art. The 

company also operates auction divisions under the names Greg Manning Auctions and Spectrum 

Numismatic Auctions. It also conducts philatelic auctions of rare single stamps and collections 

targeted to individual collectors, as well as dealers; focuses on smaller, less expensive, and mid- 

range individual stamp collections; sells individual stamps to collectors; acquires and sells 

collectible coins, collectible sports cards, and other sports memorabilia; and conducts Internet 

and telephonic auctions of coins. In addition, the company owns GMAI Auctentia Central de 
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Compras of Madrid, Spain, which engages in the sale, marketing, and production of owned and 

third-party collectibles, with an emphasis on specialized philatelic material. The company was 

established in 1981. It was formerly known as Greg Manning Auctions, Inc. and changed its 

name to Escala Group, Inc. in September 2005. Escala is headquartered at 623 Fifth Avenue, 27th 

Floor, New York, NY 10017. Escala common stock trades on the NASDAQ under the symbol 

"ESCL". 

7. Defendant Jose M. Herrero is a Director and the President and Chief Executive 

Officer of the Company. 

8. Defendant Estreban Perez is a Director of the Company and its Chief Corporate 

Strategy Officer. 

9. Defendant Greg Manning is a Director and was Chief Executive Officer until 

September 28,2005. 

10. Defendant Larry Crawford is Executive Vice-president and Chief Financial Officer. 

1 1. The defendants referenced in Paragraphs 7 through 10 are collectively referred to 

as the "Individual Defendants." 

12. As of October 17,2005, executive officers and directors of Escala owned, in the 

aggregate, approximately 78% of the outstanding common stock (including for this purpose 

approximately 68% owned by Afinsa Bienes Tangibles, S.A. ("Afinsa") and its wholly owned 

subsidiary, Auctentia, S.L. ("Auctentia".)) 

13. On September 8,2003, the Company consummated three separate transactions 

with Auctentia. In the first transaction, the Company acquired all of Auctentia's equity interests 

in the following operating subsidiaries of Auctentia in exchange for the issuance of 3,729,226 

shares of the Company's common stock: Corinphila Auktionen; Heinrich Kohler Berliner 
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Briefmarken-Auktionen; Heinrich Kohler Auktionshaus; Heinrich Kohler Briefmarkenhandel; 

Heinrich Kohler Venvaltungs; Auctentia Deutschland; and Auctentia Subastas. The aggregate 

purchase price was approximately $6,004,000 (3,729,226 shares at $1.6 1 per share). In the 

second transaction, under an inventory purchase agreement and in exchange for the issuance to 

Auctentia of 6,444,3 18 shares of stock, the Company acquired from Auctentia all of its right, 

title and interest to all of the outstanding membership interests of CdC, whose sole assets 

consisted of an inventory of certain philatelic and art assets. The value of the inventory was 

recorded based upon the closing trading price of the Company's common stock on the NASDAQ 

National Market on January 23,2003, the date on which the agreement was entered into; as such, 

the fair value of the inventory was approximately $10,118,000 (based upon 6,444,3 18 shares at 

$1.57 per share). In the last transaction, the Company issued to Auctentia 2,826,456 shares of its 

common stock, for a purchase price of the Euro equivalent of US $5.0 million. 

14. As at June 30,2005, the Company had outstanding an accounts receivable balance 

from Afinsa of approximately $8,781,000. During the year ended June 30,2005, sales to Afinsa 

were approximately $123,348,000. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

15. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a class consisting of all persons who purchased Escala 

common stock during the period September 5,2003, to May 8,2006 inclusive (the "Class 

Period") and who were damaged thereby (the "Class"). Excluded from the Class are the Company, 

its officers and directors, employees, affiliates, legal representatives, heirs, predecessors, successors 

and assigns, and any entity in which the Company has a controlling interest or of which the 

Company is a parent or subsidiary. 
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16. The members of the Class are located in geographically diverse areas and are so 

numerous that joinder of all members is impractical. The Company has over 218 million shares of 

common stock outstanding. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at 

this time, and can only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes there are, at a 

minimum, over one thousand members of the Class who held Company stock. 

17. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions affecting solely individual members of the Class. Among the 

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 

(a) Whether defendants engaged in acts or conduct in violation of the federal 

securities laws as alleged herein; 

(b) Whether defendants had a duty to disclose certain information; 

(c) Whether defendants acted negligently, knowingly or recklessly in making 

materially false and misleading statements or in failing to correct such statements upon learning that 

they were materially false and misleading during the Class Period; 

(d) Whether the market price of the Company's common stock during the Class 

Period was artificially inflated because of defendants' conduct complained of herein; and 

(e) Whether members of the Class have sustained damages and, if so, the proper 

measure of damages. 

18. Plaintiffs claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class because 

plaintiff and members of the Class sustained damages arising out of defendants' wrongful conduct 

in violation of federal law as complained of herein. 
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19. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class 

and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation. Plaintiff has 

no interests antagonistic to or in conflict with those of the Class. 

20. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members of the Class is impractical. 

Furthermore, because the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, 

the expense and burden of individual litigation make it impossible for the Class members 

individually to redress the wrongs done to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of 

this action as a class action. 

Fraud on the Market Presumption 

21. Plaintiff will rely, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established by the fraud- 

on-the-market doctrine in that: 

(a) Defendants made public misrepresentations or failed to disclose material 

facts regarding Escala's financial situation during the Class Period; 

(b) the omissions and misrepresentations were material; 

(c) the securities of the Company traded at all relevant times on the NASDQ 

National Market System, an efficient and open market; 

(d) the misrepresentations and omissions alleged would tend to induce a 

reasonable investor to misjudge the value of the Company's securities; and 

(e) Plaintiff and the members of the Class, without knowledge of the 

misrepresented facts, purchased their Escala securities between the time defendants failed to 

disclose and/or misrepresented material facts and the time the truth was disclosed. 
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22. Based upon the foregoing, plaintiff and the members of the Class are entitled to a 

presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market 

The Safe Harbor Provision is Inapplicable 

23. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain 

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this complaint. 

The statements alleged to be false and misleading herein all relate to then-existing facts and 

conditions. In addition, to the extent certain of the statements alleged to be false may be 

characterized as forward-looking, they were not adequately identified as "forward-looking 

statements" when made, there were no statements made with respect to any of those 

representations forming the basis of the complaint that actual results "could differ materially 

from those projected," and there were no meaningful cautionary statements identifying important 

factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the purportedly forward- 

looking statements. Alternatively, to the extent that the statutory safe harbor is intended to apply 

to any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, defendants are liable for those false forward- 

looking statements because at the time each of those forward-looking statements was made, the 

particular speaker had actual knowledge that the particular forward-looking statement was 

materially false or misleading, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorized andlor 

approved by an executive officer of Escala who knew that those statements were false when 

made. 

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

24. On May 9, 2006 it was publicly reported that Spanish police had arrested at least 

eight people and raided the offices of two leading stamp collection companies as part of a probe 
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into an alleged stamp investment fraud that could affect as many as 200,000 small investors, the 

country's financial crime prosecutor said Tuesday. National police officers raided the Madrid 

headquarters of Forum Filatelico and Afinsa Bienes Tangibles SAY which is the world's No. 3 

collectibles firm after Sotheby's and Christie's and is also the majority owner of NASDAQ- 

traded Escala Group (ESCL) with a 67% stake, or 18.2 million shares as of March 2006. The 

Afinsa probe sent Escala stock tumbling in pre-market trading on WET Tuesday. At 1258 GMT, 

Escala shares were down 45.4% at $1 7.46. Escala was previously known as Greg Manning 

Auctions (GMA), based in New Jersey. The operation forms part of a joint investigation 

launched by the National Court, tax authorities, financial crime prosecutors and the National 

Police over an alleged pyramid-type scheme based on overpriced stamps and other collectibles. 

The prosecutor's office said in a statement that Spanish authorities are conducting more than 20 

searches at company offices and private residences. The prosecutor's office also said it plans to 

conduct "several arrests" as part of a lawsuit against the two companies on charges ranging from 

tax evasion and money laundering to criminal insolvency and falsification of documents. The 

operation comes after Barron's magazine extensively reported questionable practices at Afinsa, 

which operates a "no-lose" stamp-sales program for investors in Spain and Portugal. Many of the 

investors are retired individuals allocating an average of ELRI 50 to EUR300, according to court 

officials. Afinsa guarantees a return of 6% to 10% over a fixed period, with a money-back 

guarantee when the contracts expire. According to Barron's, some stamp experts have expressed 

doubts about the value of stamps, which appear to be worth far less than what Afinsa charges for 

them. So-called pyramid or Ponzi schemes pay high returns to investors by using the money 

from newly-arrived investors, rather than from revenue generated by any real business. Court 

officials said that since Afinsa isn't classified as a financial institution, it had received poor 
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governmental monitoring. Afinsa and Forum Filatelico officials couldn't be reached for 

comment. The police operation also took place after Barron's reported last month that the 

Lloyd's of London (LYL.YY) syndicate, which insures Afinsa's collection for $1.5 billion, could 

pull their backing. Escala is scheduled Tuesday to release earnings for the third quarter of its 

2006 fiscal year, after markets close in the U.S. Chief executive Jose Miguel Herrero is due to 

attend a conference call with analysts Wednesday. A person at the company said Escala 

executives are currently meeting to discuss the situation. She declined to provide additional 

information. Escala Group reported $10.1 million net income, or $0.35 per diluted share, for the 

second quarter. That compares with $7.7 million in net income for the same period a year earlier. 

25. It was thereafter publicly reported that: 

Escala Group has been advised that Spanish judicial authorities, as 
part of what appears to be an investigation into the stamps- 
collectibles sector, have collected documents from Afinsa Bienes 
Tangibles, S.A. (Afinsa) of Madrid, Escala's majority shareholder. 
In what the Company believes to be an extension of this process, 
the Spanish authorities are also collecting documents at Escala 
offices in Madrid, during which time normal operations at these 
locations are suspended. The Company has also been advised that 
certain members of the board of directors of Afinsa, including 
Carlos de Figueiredo, an Afinsa representative on Escala's board, 
are being questioned. 

At this time, Spanish authorities have not advised the Company as 
to the nature of the investigation. 

Escala is currently reviewing developments in Madrid, and the 
Company will release relevant details to the market as 
management can make informed comments. 

26. As a result of this news which was completely unexpected, on May 9,2006, 

ESCL shares were down almost 58 percent on markedly increased volume. 
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27. On September 5,2003 the Company announced: 

Greg Manning Auctions, Inc. (Nasdaq: GMAI) today announced 
financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30,2003 

Net revenues for fiscal 2003 reached a record $101.2 million, up 
25% from the prior fiscal year's total of $80.8 million. The 
company also achieved a record gross profit of $14.5 million, an 
increase of 65% from last year's $8.8 million. Net income for fiscal 
2003 totaled$2.8 million, or $0.22 per share, compared to a loss of 
$13.2 million, or $1.06 per share, for the prior year. The results for 
fiscal 2002 included a non-cash intangible asset impairment charge 
of $4.7 million and a non-cash write-off of deferred tax assets of 
$3.2 million. 

For the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2003, net income totaled$2.1 
million compared to a loss of $10.6 million in the previous year's 
fourth quarter, and net revenues increased from $22.6 million in 
the fourth quarter of last year to $29.8 million in fiscal 2003. 
Results for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 included non-cash 
charges of $7.8 million. 

Greg Manning, President and Chief Executive Officer, stated "We 
are very pleased to report the results of our fourth quarter and 
fiscal year 2003. For the fiscal year, we achieved a record $118.2 
million in aggregate sales, an increase of 19% from last year's 
$99.2 million; for the fourth quarter aggregate sales were $34.2 
million, compared to aggregate sales of $27.8 million in the same 
period in fiscal 2002. The turnaround we have achieved from fiscal 
2002 and 2001 underscores the progress our management team has 
made in returning the company to profitability. Our growth during 
the second half of fiscal 2003 was particularly strong and steady, 
involving virtually all areas of the company's operations." 

The increase in revenue, aggregate sales and gross profit in fiscal 
2003 was attributable to a number of factors. The company's 
Philatelic Division experienced growth in the auction sector 
through its initial auction in Hong Kong, and increased its market 
share in its specialty auctions of collections and dealers' 
inventories. It also completed a number of significant "private 
treaty" transactions, including the multi- million dollar placement 
of a significant portion of the United Nations Philatelic Archives, 
recently deaccessioned by the U.N. On a pro-fonna basis, before 
interest and non-cash expenses, the company's operating income 
for fiscal 2003 totaled $4.4 million versus a loss of $2.9 million in 
fiscal 2002. On a pro-forma basis, the company's income in fiscal 
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2003 totaled $0.34 per diluted share versus a loss of $0.24 per 
diluted share the previous year.(l) 

Mr. Manning added, "All of us at GMAI are particularly 
enthusiastic about our pending transactions with Auctentia, S.L., 
which will add approximately $23 million in equity to the 
company. Our fourth quarter revenues were also significantly 
enhanced by several sales to Afinsa Bienes Tangibles, S.A., the 
parent company of Auctentia." 

Mr. Manning continued, "Among the transactions expected to be 
completed shortly include our acquisition of three of the world's 
leading auction houses - Auctentia Subastas, S.L. of Madrid, Spain, 
Corinphila Auktionen AG Auctions of Zurich, Switzerland, and the 
Kohler group of auction companies of Berlin and Wiesbaden, 
Germany. The completion of these transactions will make us a truly 
global operation, with a major presence on three continents and a 
whole new array of opportunities available to us." 

28. The defendants failed to reveal the true nature of the business 

combination and that it was based on improper and illegal conduct. 

29. Thus, thereafter, during the Class Period, the Company and the defendants caused 

the Company to report its business and financial results. These were required to be rendered in 

accordance with SEC rules and Generally Accepted Accounting Practices ("GAAF"'). For 

instance, in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending June 30, 2005, the Company 

described its business, described how it obtained revenue and described its financial reporting 

which it claimed was rendered in accordance with GAAP. The Annual Report was signed by 

defendants Manning, Crawford, Perez, and Herrero. 

30. The Annual Report on Form 10-K was materially false and misleading since, 

during the Class Period, the Company, which was portrayed as a legitimate business with 

completely legitimate business operations and accurate and proper financial statements reflecting 

the receipt of revenues and earnings from legitimate business operations, was in fact run in part 
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as a criminal enterprise in conjunction with the criminal activities of its majority shareholder 

Afinsa, with whom it had integrated business operations since the beginning of the Class Period. 

31. The other public filings and pronouncements by the Defendants were similarly 

false and misleading for the same reasons. 

COUNT l 
For Violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule lob-5 

32. Plaintiff incorporates by reference and realleges each of the foregoing paragraphs. 

33. During the Class Period, defendants, individually and in concert, engaged in a plan, 

scheme, and course of conduct, pursuant to which they knowingly and/or recklessly engaged in acts, 

transactions, practices, and courses of business which operated as a fraud upon Plaintiff and other 

members of the Class, and made various untrue and deceptive statements of material fact and 

omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading to Plaintiff and other Class members. 

The purpose and effect of this scheme was to induce plaintiff and the Class to purchase Escala 

common stock at artificially inflated prices. 

34. During the Class Period, defendants, pursuant to their plan, scheme and unlawhl 

course of conduct, knowingly and/or recklessly issued, or caused to be issued statements to the 

investing public as described above, including the Class Period press releases and the Class Period 

SEC Filings. 

1 Defendants knew andlor recklessly disregarded the falsity of the foregoing 

statements. As senior officers andlor directors of the Company, involved in its business and 

operations, the Individual Defendants had access to the non-public information detailed above, by 

virtue of their receipt of periodic internal reports detailing actual sales, advertising revenues and 

other financial information. 
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35. Throughout the Class Period, Escala acted through the Individual Defendants, whom 

it portrayed and represented to the press and public as its valid representatives. The willfblness, 

motive, knowledge, and recklessness of the Individual Defendants are therefore imputed to Escala 

which is primarily responsible for the securities law violations of the Individual Defendants while 

acting in their official capacities as Company representatives, or, in the alternative, which is liable 

for the acts of the Individual Defendants under the doctrine of respondent superior. 

36. Each of the defendants knew or recklessly disregarded the fact that the above acts 

and practices, misleading statements, and omissions would adversely affect the integrity of the 

market in Escala's common stock. Had the adverse facts defendants concealed been properly 

disclosed, Escala's stock would not have sold at the artificially inflated prices it did during the Class 

Period. 

37. The value of Escala common stock declined materially upon public disclosure of the 

truth concerning the Company's financial circumstances, financial circumstances which had been 

misrepresented or concealed, as alleged in this complaint. Plaintiff and other members of the Class 

have suffered substantial damages as a result of the wrongs alleged herein. 

38. By reason of the foregoing, defendants violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act 

and Rule lob-5 promulgated thereunder. 

39. By reason of their status as officers and/or members of management and as 

directors of Escala the Individual Defendants were "controlling persons" of Escala within the 

meaning of Section 20 of the Exchange Act and had the power and influence to cause Escala to 

engage in the unlawful conduct complained of herein. Because of their positions of control, the 

Individual Defendants were able to and did, directly or indirectly, control the conduct of Escala's 

Case 1:06-cv-03518-AKH     Document 1      Filed 05/09/2006     Page 13 of 17



business, the information contained in its filings with the SEC and public statements about its 

business. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff on his own behalf and on behalf of the Class prays for judgment 

as follows: 

A. Declaring this action to be a proper class action maintainable pursuant to Rule 23 of 

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and plaintiff to be a proper class representative and his counsel 

lead counsel; 

B. Awarding plaintiff and the Class compensatory damages, together with appropriate 

prejudgment interest at the maximum rate allowable by law; 

C. Awarding plaintiff and the Class their costs and expenses for this litigation including 

reasonable attorneys' fees and other disbursements; and 

D. Granting such other and hrther relief as this Court deems to be just and proper. 

Dated: May 9, 2006. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

PASKOWITZ &ASSOCIATES 

By: 

New York, New ~ o r g 1 0  165 
Telephone: (212) 685-0969 
Facsimile: (2 12) 685-2306 

Roy L. Jacobs, Esq. (RLJ-0286) 
60 East 42nd Street 
46th Floor 
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New York, NY 10165 
Telephone: (2 12) 867-1 156 
Facsimile: (2 12) 504-8343 
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EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT A 
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PLAINTIFF'S CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned ("Plaintiff') declares, as to the claims aserted under the federal 
securities laws, that: 

I .  Plaintiff has reviewed the complaint against Escala Group, Inc. ("ESCL") and 
certain other defendants. 

2. Plaintiff did not acquire the security that is the subject of this action at the 
direction of plaintiffs counsel or in order to participate in this: private action or any other 
litigation under the federal securities laws. 

3. Plaintiff is willing to serve as a representative party on behalf of a class, includi~ig 
providin~ testimony at dcposition and trial, if necessary. 

4. Plaintiff will not accept any payment for serving as a representative party on 
behalf of the class beyond the Plaintiffs pro rata share of any feCbveQ, excepl such reasonable 
costs and expenses (including lost wages) directly rclating to the representation of the class as 
approved by the court. 

5. Plaintiff made the following transactions during the Clnss Period in the common 
shares of ESCL: 

Purchases I ..--,. .,, 
Sales 

6. During the three years prior to the date of this Certification, Plaintiff has not 
sought to serve or sewed as a representative parly for a class in an action filed under the federal 
securities laws. I'/ 

7 
7. 1 declare under penalty of perjury, this ,,jJ day of May, 2006 that the 

information above is accurate. 7- 

Price Da te(s) 
- ,  

Number 
of Shares 
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